
BEFORE TTIE MISSISSPPI STATE BOARD OF FI,]NERAL SERVICE

In the Mafter ofi

DILLON FTINERAL HOME
And
PATRICIA DILLON
In her individual capacity and as
Licensee in Charge

No. roTzrozgoS

Respondents

STIPL'I-ATION AND CONSENT ORDER

NOW COMES the Mississippi State Board of Funeral Service ("Board") and
Patricia Dillon ("Dillon"), individually, and in her capacity as Licensee in Charge of Dillon
Funeral Home ("DFH"), agree and stipulate as follows:

FINDINGS OF FASI

Respondents hereby acknowledge and admits the following facts, which are found
to be established by clear and convincing evidence:

r. The Board is charged with administering and enforcing the provisions of
Title 73, Chapter rr of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, and the Rules and
Regulatiors of the Board, 30 Miss. Admin. Code Pt. 2407, which govern funeral
establishments and the business and practices offuneral service and funeral directing.

2. DFH is the holder of license number FE-933o issued by the Board and,
therefore, is subject to Title 73, Chapter rr ofthe Mississippi Code of rg7z, as amended.

3. At all relevant times, Dillon is licersee in charge of, and/or individual
responsible for DFH, holding license number FD-r253. Accordingly, Respondent is

subject to Title 73, Chapter rr of the Mississippi Code of tg7z, as amended.

4. At all relevant times following this paragraph Dillon and DFH are now
referred to as "Respondents."

I,'NDERSTANDINGS

r. By entering this Stipulation and Consent Order, the Respondents waives
any defect inthe proceedings before the Board and any further rightto notice and hearing
under Title 73, Chapter rr of the Mississippi Code of 7972, as amended, or any other
governing laws, rules and regulations.

z. Respondents acknowledge that they are voluntariiy and kngwingly agreeirg
to this Stipulation and Consent Order with the Board' Respondents had the opportunity



at all times to be represented by legal counsel and to obtain advice from competert
counsel of their choice as to this Stipulation and Consent Order. No coercion has been
exerted upon Respondents nor have any promises been made other than those reflected
in this Stipulation and Consent Order. Respondents have freely and voluntarily entered
into this Stipulation and Corxent Order after the opportunity to consult with legal
counsel.

S. Respondents expressly waive their right to a contested hearing before the
Board and all further procedural steps and expressly waive all rights to seek judicial
reviewof orto otherwise challenge or contestthe validityofany action takenby the Board
and/or its representative(s) in this matter, the Stipulation and Consent Order and/or
penalty imposed by the Board.

4. Respondents understand that this Stipulation and Consent Order is subjed
to the approval ofthe Boardand shall have no force and effect unless and until signed for
the Board. Respondents agree and authorize the Board staff and/or legal counsel to
present this Stipulation and Consent Order to the Board for approval of the terms
provided herein. Should this Stipulation and Consent Order not be entered by the Board,
Respondents agree that the presentation to and consideration of the Stipulation and
Consent Order by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice the Board or any of its
members from further participation in the resolution of these proceedings, including
serving as arbiter in any hearing regarding the Respondents by having considered this
matter. Similarly, ifthis Stipulationand Consent Orderis not accepted, Respondents will
be free to defend themselves in a formal hearing before the Board and no admissions or
inferences will be made from Respondents' willingness to have entered into this
Stipulation and Consent Order.

5. Respondents reviewedthis entire document and agreed that this Stipulation
and Corsent Order contains the entire agreement between Respondents and the Board,
there being no other agreement of any kind, verbal or otherwise, which varies the terms
of this Stipulation and Consent Order. Respondents also agree that this Stipulation and
Consent Order is a Final Order ofthe Board.

6. It is the desire of Respondents to settle this matter. As such, Respondents
stipulate and agree to the terms herein.

In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulatiors, the Board
makes the following:

CONCLUSIONS OF IAW

1. The Board has jurisdiction over the Respondents and the subject matter in
this case pursuant to Sections 73-rr-49 and 7g-11-57 of the Mississippi Code of t972, as
amended. Venue is likewise properly placed before the Board to consider this matter in
Flowood, Rankin County, Mississippi.



2. AII substantive and procedural requirements under law have been met by
the Board. This matter is, therefore, properly before the Board.

3. The Board is authorized by Section 73-r7-4g to adopt such rules and
regulations as it finds necessary for the licersure and regulation of the business and
practices of funeral directing and fimeral service.

4. Upon a finding that Respondents are guilty ofany ofthe acts set forth under
Section 73-rr-57, the Board is authorized to refuse to issue or renew any license, suspend
a license, place a license on probation, impose a monetary penalty and/or take any other
action as the Board deems proper in relation to a license.

5. Having considered all the evidence and Respondents'own admissions and
representations in this matter, the Board has determined that the eyidence clearly and
convincingly establishes a cause for discipline against the Respondent. On or about
August 12, zoz4 Respondents transferred the remains of Arnett Daniels via the United
Parcel Service (UPS) This is in violation of Section 73-rt-57Q,)@) via 3o MS
Administrative Code Part 2401, Rule 8.r.7 via 9o FR9843-or incorporatedto the Code of
Federai Regulationsvia 39 CFR rrr.r and ru.3. This regulation section alters relevant law
in the following way:

Publication 5e, Hazardous, Restricted, and Perishable Mail:
4 Restricted Matter
45 Other Restricted Materials
451.22 Cremated Remains
Revise section as follows:
Human or animal cremated remains in any state... are permitted for mailing as

follows:
a. Domestic:
r. Must be sent via Priority Mail Express Service
2. Must be packaged according to 451.3b and Packaging Instruction roC
g. Mailers must use one of the special Priority Mail Express cremated remains

branded boxes...available on usps.com...
Al1 cremated remains mailings must utiiize the USPS-produced Cremated
Remains outer packaging...

30 Miss. Admin. Code Pt.2401, R. 8.r.7 "Violation of any provision of the lawg
rules or regulations pertaining to the practice of funeral directing or funeral service
or funeral establishment."

73-tt-SZG)@) "Violating any statute, ordinance, rule or regulation ofthe state or
any of its boards, agencies or political subdivisions affecting the registration of
deaths or the handling, custodS care or transportation of dead human bodies"

6. By such conduct the Respondents further failed to comply with the laws,
rules and regulations governing funeral establishments and the practice of funeral



directing and/or funeral service in the State of Mississippi in violation of Section 73 -rr-
sz(t)(g).

Respondents agree and consent, and the Board finds and concludes that the
following is the just and appropriate disposition under the circumstances of this case.

STIPI]I-ATED DISPOSITION

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondents are hereby assessed a monetary
penalty in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars (g5oo.oo) for the violation cited herein.
The monetary penalty must bepaid by money order or certifiedor cashier's check, payable
to the Mississippi State Board of Funeral Service. Respondents shall be jointly and
severally liable for the payment ofthe monetary penalty.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any money paid by Respondents shall be deemed
received by the Board when noted in the Board's record by Board staff, Further, any
correspondence, report, or documentation from or for the Respondents shall be deemed
received by the Board when the Board's date stamp is affixed to the correspondence. The
monetarypenalty, costs, fees and/or other report or documentation required by this Final
Order shall be deliveredto: Della Smith, Executive Director, Mississippi State Board of
Funeral Service, 3oto Lakeland Cove, Suite W, Flowood, Mississippi Sg212-g7o9.

FURTHER ORDERED that Respondents shall comply with the terms of this
Stipulation and Consent Order and all state and federal statutes and regulatiors
concerning the operation of funeral establishments and the practices or business of
funeral directing and funeral service. Failure to do so shall constitute a violation of this
Order. The burden ofprooffor any actionbrought against the Respondents as a result of
a breach of the conditions of this Stipulation and Consent Order shall be on the
Respondents to demonstrate compliance with this Order.

FURTHER ORDERED that it is Respondents' responsibility to ensure all
payments, requiredto be filed withthe Board pursuant to this Final Order are timelyfiled
with the Board. Failure to make paSrments or file reports on or before their due date is a
violation of this Order.

FURTHER ORDERED that if Respondents fail to comply with the laws and
regulatiors governing the operation of funeral establishments and/or the practice or
business of funeral directing and/or funeral service and/or with any terms or conditiom
of this Stipulation and Consent Order, the Respondents may be subject to additional
disciplinary action, up to and including license revocation, by the Board.

FURTHER ORDERED that the Respondents and the Board fuIly understand that
this Stipulation and Consent Order will in no way preclude additional proceedings by the
Board against the Respondents for acts or omissions not related to the facts set forth
hereinabove.

FURTHER ORDERED that this Stipulation and Consent Order is conclusire
evidence of the matters described herein and may be considered by the Board in



determining appropriate sanctions in ttre event of sub,sequelt violation by the
Respondents.

FURTHER ORDERED that this action and order ofthe Board shall be public
record- It rnay be shared with other Iicensing boartls (in- and out-of-state) anal the public
and may be reportetl to the appropriate entities as required or autlorized by state and/or
federal law or tuidelioes. This action shall be spread upoo tbe Minutes of the Board as its
of6cial act and deed.

Upon exec.ution of this Stipulation and Coasent Order by affxing the Board
authorized sigrature below, the prbvisiorx of this ftipulation a-nd Consent-Order shall
become the Final Order of tI* Board.

sooR.DEREDtbistne--j.p-6., 6d-L, ro.,-.
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STATE OF /l,li;rits,

Personally, appeared before me, the undersigned authority, in and for the
jurisdiction aforesaid, the within who acknowledged before me that he signed
the above and foregoing instrument on the day and year theiein mentioned.)e
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